
 

-1- 
DEFENDANT I.Q. DATA INTERNATIONAL, INC.’S NOTICE OF REMOVAL 

G
o

rd
o

n
 R

ee
s 

S
cu

ll
y

 M
a

n
su

k
h

a
n

i,
 L

L
P

 
5

 P
ar

k
 P

la
za

, 
S

u
it

e 
1

10
0 

Ir
v

in
e,

 C
A

  
92

6
14

 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

KENDRA S. CANAPE  (SBN: 259641) 
kcanape@grsm.com   
GORDON REES SCULLY MANSUKHANI, LLP 
5 Park Plaza, Suite 1100 
Irvine, CA 92614 
Telephone:  (949) 290-3253 
Facsimile:  (949) 474-2060 
 
Attorneys for Defendant 

IQ DATA INTERNATIONAL, INC. 

 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

 
   CARMEN STARKS, INDIVIDUALLY 
AND ON BEHALF OF THE 
GENERAL PUBLIC,  

 

Plaintiff,  

 

vs.  

 

I.Q. DATA INTERNATIONAL INC., A 
WASINGTON CORPORATION; AND 
DOES 1 THROUGH 100, INCLUSIVE, 

 

Defendants. 

 Case No.:  
 
 
DEFENDANT I.Q. DATA 
INTERNATIONAL, INC.’S 
NOTICE OF REMOVAL  
 
 
 
 
 
[Removal from Superior Court 
of California, County of Kern, 
Case No. BCV-23-101559] 
 

 

TO THE CLERK OF THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR 

THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA AND THE PLAINTIFF AND 

HER ATTORNEYS OF RECORD: 

 PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1332, 1441, and 

1446, Defendant IQ Data International, Inc. (“Defendant” or “IQ Data”), hereby 

removes the above-referenced case from the Superior Court for the State of 
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California for the County of Kern, to the United States District Court for the Eastern 

District of California.  IQ Data pleads as follows regarding the grounds for removal:

I. THE STATE COURT ACTION  

 1. On May 18, 2023, Plaintiff Carmen Starks (“Plaintiff”), individually 

and on behalf of the general public, filed suit against IQ Data in the Superior Court 

of the State of California for the County of Kern, styled Carmen Starks, Individually 

And On Behalf Of The General Public v. IQ Data International, Inc., a Washington 

Corporation; and Does 1 through 100, inclusive (the “State Court Action”).  Pursuant 

to 28 U.S.C. § 1446(a), copies of all summons, process, pleadings, motions, and orders 

filed in the State Court Action are attached hereto as “Exhibit A.” 

 2. IQ Data first received notice of this lawsuit on May 31, 2023, when it 

was served with a copy of Plaintiff’s summons and Complaint.  

 3. Plaintiff claims that IQ Data violated the Fair Debt Collection 

Practices Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1692 et seq. (the “FDCPA”), the California Rosenthal Fair 

Debt Collection Practices Act, Cal. Civ. Code § 1788, et seq. (“RFDCPA”) and the 

California Unfair Business Practices Act, Business and Professions Code § 17200, et 

seq.  (“UPA”).   

II. SUPPLEMENTAL JURISDICTION 
 4. In addition to original jurisdiction over Plaintiff’s federal question 

jurisdiction claims arising under the FDCPA, the Court has supplemental 

jurisdiction over Plaintiff’s RFDCPA and UPA claims pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367 

because those claims are related to federal questions claims within the original 

Case 1:23-cv-00996-CDB   Document 1   Filed 06/30/23   Page 2 of 29



 

-3- 
DEFENDANT I.Q. DATA INTERNATIONAL, INC.’S NOTICE OF REMOVAL 

G
o

rd
o

n
 R

ee
s 

S
cu

ll
y

 M
a

n
su

k
h

a
n

i,
 L

L
P

 
5

 P
ar

k
 P

la
za

, 
S

u
it

e 
1

10
0 

Ir
v

in
e,

 C
A

  
92

6
14

 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

jurisdiction of this Court and form part of the same case or controversy under Article 

III of the United States Constitution. 

II. THE PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS FOR REMOVAL ARE SATISFIED  

 5. IQ Data first received notice of the Complaint on May 31, 2023, upon 

service of the summons and Complaint.  Therefore, its removal of this action is 

timely in accordance with 28 U.S.C. § 1446(b), because IQ Data’s Notice of Removal 

was filed within 30 days.  See 28 U.S.C. § 1446(b).  

 6. Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1446(a), copies of all summons, process, 

pleadings, motions and orders that have been filed in the State Court Action are 

attached as “Exhibit A.”   

 7. This Court embraces the locality in which the State Court Action is now 

pending, making this Court a proper forum pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1446(a). 

 8. No previous application has been made for the relief requested herein. 

 9. Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1446(d), a copy of this Notice of Removal is 

being served upon Plaintiff, and a copy is being filed with the Superior Court of the 

State of California for the County of Kern.   

 10. If any questions arise regarding the propriety of the removal of this 

action, IQ Data respectfully requests the opportunity to present a brief and/or oral 

argument in support of its position that this case is removable. 

Dated:  June 30, 2023 GORDON REES SCULLY MANSUKHANI, 
LLP 
 
 

 By: /s/ Kendra S. Canape__________ 
Kendra S. Canape 
Attorneys for Defendant 
IQ DATA INTERNATIONAL, INC. 
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ELECTRONICALLX FILED 
5/18/2023 11:59 AM 

1 LAW OFFICES OF JOHN D. GUERRINI Kern County Superior Court 

John D. Guerrini (State Bar No. 190972) By Marina Mercado,  Deputy 
2  74-710 Highway 111 ~ Suite 102 
3  Palm Desert, CA 92260 

626=485-8660 
4 john@johnguerrini.com 

5  ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF, 
6  CARMEN STARKS 

7 SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

8 FOR THE COUNTY OF }4ERN 

9 UNLIMITED JURISDICTION 

10 
CARMEN STARKS, INDIVIDUALLY AND ON) Case No.: 

BCV-23-101559 

11 BEHALF OF THE GENERAL PUBLIC, 
~ COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 

12 Piaintiff, ) AND DAMAGES FOR VIOLATIONS OF 
) THE FAIR DEBT COLLECTION 

13 vs. ) PRACTICES ACT, THE ROSENTHAL 
) ACT, AND BUSINESS & PROFESSIONS 

14 I.Q. DATA INTERNATIONAL, INC., A ) CODE SECTION 17200 

WASHINGTON CORPORATION; AND ~ DEMAND: EXCEEDS $25,000.00 
15  DOES 1 THROUGH 100, INCLUSIVE, ) 

16 Defendants. 
) JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 
~ 

17 

18 TO THE COURT, ALL PARTIES, AND THEIR ATTORNEYS OF RECORD: 

19 Plaintiff CARMEN STARKS ("PlaintifP'), individually and on behalf of herself and all 

20 others similarly situated, as well as on behalf of the general public, hereby complains against 

21 defendants I.Q. DATA INTERNATIONAL, INC. ("Defendant") and DOES 1 through 100, 

22 inclusive, and on information and belief, alleges as follows: 

23 OPERATIVE FACTS 

24 1. This action concerns Defendants' violations of the federal Fair Debt Collection 

25 Practices Act (the "FDCPA"), the California Rosenthal Fair Debt Collection Practices Act (the 

26 "Rosenthal Act"), and the California Unfair Business Practices Act also known as Business 

27 & Professions Code section 17200 et seq. (the "UBP Act"). 

28 2. Plaintiff is a 67-year-old retiree living in Bakersfield. 

- 1 - 
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1 3. Defendant is a Washington Corporation which regularly engages in debt- 

2 coilection activity in this Judicial District in Kern County, State of California. 

3 4. Defendant planned and carried out a despicable campaign of false, deceptive, 

4 misleading, unfair, and unconscionable conduct directed at Plaintiff, a literal "bait and 

5 switch," whereby Defendant lied to Plaintiff about the terms of a settlement proposed by the 

6 Defendant. It was only after Plaintiff complied with the terms of the settlement exactly as 

7 presented that Defendant then showed its true colors and reneged on the terms, refusing to 

8 honor the settlement. This despicable conduct crosses the boundaries of civilized behavior 

9 and violates a host of consumer protection statutes. One can only wonder how many times 

10 Defendant has engaged in the same pattern of conduct with other similarly situated 

11 consumers. 

12 5. Plaintiff brings this action as a private attorney general and seeks injunctive 

13 relief to end this corporate lawbreaking for the benefit of all affected Californians. 

14 6. In summer 2022, Plaintiff and her daughter, Lorene Miller, co-signed a lease 

15 for an apartment located in Moreno Valley in an apartment building known as Ardella on 

16 Chagall (the "Apartment"). Plaintiff and her daughter then occupied the property. 

17 7. At the time Plaintiff vacated the Apartment, there remained a balance due to 

18 the owner of the Apartment. The owner then hired Defendant to attempt to collect the 

19 balance from Plaintiff and her daughter. 

20 8. In early January 2023, Defendant made demand upon both Plaintiff and her 

21 daughter for the balance due on the Apartment. The demand was made upon Plaintiff and 

22 her daughter in the city of Bakersfield. Each demand was nearly identical, and critically, each 

23 ' demand bore the same account number: 0008880875. 

24 9. On or about January 20, 2023, Plaintiff spoke by telephone with Tyler 

25 Tabarejo-Ishikuro, an employee of Defendant. In this telephone call, Plaintiff told Tyler that 

26 she did not have enough money to pay the entire balance. At that time, Tyler refused to 

27 discount the balance. 

28 

- 2 - 
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1 10. Subsequently, on January 31, 2023, Tyler made an oral offer via telephone to 

2 Plaintiff to settle the entire balance on the account 0008880875 if Plaintiff were to 

3 immediately pay 50% of the then-outstanding balance of $6238.90. Plaintiff asked Tyler to 

4 confirm the settlement offer in writing, and that same day, Tyler sent by email written 

5 confirmation of the offer to settle in full the entire account 0008880875 in exchange for 50% 

6 of the then-outstanding balance of $6238.90. In other words, in exchange for Plaintiff paying 

7 $3119.45, the account would be settled in full with no further liability to either PlaintifF or her 

8 daughter. A true copy of said written offer is attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and incorporated 

9 herein by this reference as though set out in full. 

10 11. Specifically, Defendant stated in writing: "We at I.Q. Data International have 

11 reviewed your file and agree to accept $3119.45 as settlement in full regarding the above- 

12 mentioned account. Payment must be received in our office not later than 01/31/23." 

13 12. Defendant also stated in writing: "I.Q. Data International, Inc., further agrees 

14 I to request deletion of any negative information supplied to any credit bureaus regarding this 

15 I account." 

16 13. Plaintiff complied the very same day with the terms of the offer by Plaintiff 

17 promptly paying $3119.45 by credit card over the phone to Defendant, based upon I 

18 Defendant's telephone and emailed offer. I 

19 14. Laterthe same day, January 31, 2023, Defendant stated in writing: "We at I.Q. 

20 Data International, Inc., acknowledge receipt of your payment in the amount of $3119.45 on 

21 the date of 01/31/23 and hereby release you, and you alone, from any further liability related 

22 to the above mentioned debt to the original creditor and I.Q. International, Inc. [sic]." A true 

23 copy of this written statement is attached hereto as Exhibit 2 and incorporated herein by this 

24 reference as though set out in full. 

25 15. In other words, Defendant was now attempting to change the terms of the 

26 settlement offer that it had made to Plaintiff. Defendant now took the position that only 

27 Plaintiff— and not her daughter — was reteased by the settlement, and not the entire account. 

28 This position directfy contradicts the terms of the proposal made by the Defendant's agent 

- 3 - 
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on the telephone as well as the express terms of the Exhibit 1 written offer. Plaintiff 

demanded that Defendant compfy with the terms of the offer that Plaintiff had accepted; 

however, Defendant refused, insisting that there remained a balance due on the account in 

the sum of $3119.45. 

16. Despite PlaintifPs reminder to the Defendant that by her payment, the entire 

debt was settled, the Defendant ignored its agreement and continued its attempts to collect 

the debt. PlaintifPs and her daughter's credit reports by the three major credit reporting 

8 agencies thus contained derogatory information because of Defendant's refusal to correct 

9 the reporting to credit bureaus, even though Plaintifffully satisfied the terms of the settlement 

10 offer made by Defendant. 

11 I PARTIES 

12 17. PlaintifP is an individual over the age of 18 years, who resides in the city of 

13 Bakersfield, California. 

14 18. Defendant is a Washington corporation which, at all times relevant herein, was 

15 licensed to do business and was conducting business in the State of California and in Kern 

16 County. Defendant is a debt collector and engaged in the business of attempting to collect 

17 consumer debt. 

18 19. Defendants Does 1 through 100 are persons or entities whose true names and 

19 capacities are presently unknown to PlaintifF, and who therefore are sued by such fictitious 

20 names. Plaintiff is informed and believes and thereon alleges that each of the fictitiously 

21 named defendants perpetrated some or all of the wrongful acts aNeged herein, is responsible 

22 in some manner for the matters alleged herein and is jointly and severally liable to plaintiff. 

23 Plaintiff will seek leave of court to amend this complaint to state the true names and 

24 capacities of such fictitiously named defendants when ascertained. 

25 20. At all times mentioned herein, each defendant was the agent or employee of 

26 each of the other defendants and was acting within the course and scope of such agency or 

27 employment. The defendants are jointly and severally liable to plaintiff. 

28 
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1 CLASS ALLEGATIONS 
t 

2 21. This action is brought as a class action. Plaintiff tentatively defines the class 

3 as all California consumers to whom, during the one year prior to the filing of this Complaint, 

4 Defendants sent letters similar to Exhibit 1, i.e., letters to a co-debtor on one single account, 

5 purporting to accept payment as settlement in full of the account. Plaintiff may subsequently 

6 refine the class definition in light of discovery. 

7 22. The class is so numerous that joinder of all members is impractical. On 

8 information and belief, letters similar to Exhibit 1 have been sent to hundreds of consumers 

9 who were jointly liable with one or more co-debtors on a single account. 

10 23. There are questions of law and fact common to the class, which predominate 

11 over any questions affecting only individual class members. The principal question is 

12 whether Defendants' conduct in connection with the mailing of Exhibit 1 and similar letters 

13 to consumers, and subsequently accepting money from consumers in response to said 

14 letters without honoring the terms of the letter, violates the FDCPA and the Rosenthal Act. 

15 24. There are no individual questions, other than whether a class member 

16 received one of the offending letters, which can be determined by ministerial inspection of 

17 I I defendants' records. 

18 25. Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the class. She is 

19 committed to vigorously litigating this matter. She is greatly annoyed at being the victim of 

20 1 Defendants' illegal practices and wishes to see that the wrong is remedied for her and others 

21 1 similarly situated. To that end, she has retained counsel to represent her and the class 

22 1 claims, and neither Plaintiff nor her counsel have any interests which might cause them not 

23 to vigorously pursue this claim. 

24 26. Plaintiffs claim is typical of the claims of the class, which all arise from the 

25 same operative facts and are based on the same legal theories. 

26 27. A class action is a superior method for the fair and efficient adjudication of this 

27 controversy. Most of the consumers who receive a letter identical or similar to Exhibit 1 

28 undoubtedly believe that they and their co-debtor(s) will be released upon payment of the 
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1 monies pursuant to the settlement terms in the letter. They would have no way to know that 

2 illegal collection practices are violating their rights. The interest of class members in 

3 individually controlling the prosecution of separate claims against Defendants is small 

4 because the maximum damages allowable under the FDCPA in an individual action are 

5$1,000 per violation. Management of this class claim is likely to present significantly fewer 

6 difficulties than those presented in many class claims. 

7 JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

8 28. The Superior Court has jurisdiction over this matter since Plaintiff seeks 

9 injunctive relief and the amount in controversy exceeds $25,000. 

10 29. Venue is proper in Kern County pursuant to Business & Professions Code 

11 § 17203, which allows any person who has engaged in unfair competition to be enjoined in 

12 "any court of competent jurisdiction." Defendants do not maintain their residence in any 

13 particular county in the State of California. PlaintifF resides in this Judicial District. 

14 30. Venue is also proper in Kern County pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure 

15 § 395. 

16 FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION 

17 VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT, 

18 15 U.S.C. § 1692 ET SEQ. 

19 (By Plaintiff as to AII Defendants) 

20 31. Plaintiff incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 30, inclusive, as 

21 though set forth in full herein. 

22 32. The Federal Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1692 et seq. 

23 ("FDCPA") became effective in March 1978 and was and is designed to eliminate abuse, 

24 deceptive, and unfair debt collection practices. It also protects reputable debt collectors from 

25 unfair competition and encourages consistent state action to protect consumers from abuses 

26 in debt collection. 

27 33. The FDCPA applies only to the collection of debt incurred by a consumer 

28 primarily for personal, family, or household purposes. It does not apply to the collection of 
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1 corporate debt or debt owed for business or agricultural purposes. The debt herein is for 

2 outstanding rent due from a tenant to a landlord — a consumer debt — and is thus covered 

3 under the FDCPA. 

4 34. The FDCPA defines a debt collector as any person who regularly collects, or 

5 attempts to collect, consumer debts for another person or institution or uses some name 

6 other than its own when coilecting its own consumer debts. The definition includes 

7 businesses that regularly collect debts for an unrelated institution. Defendant is a business 

8 that is regularly hired to collect debts for others and as such, is subject to the FDCPA. 

9 35. The FDCPA at 15 U.S.C. section 1692e provides, among other things, that "[a] 

10 debt collector may not use any false, deceptive, or misleading representation or means in 

11 connection with the collection of any debt." By lying to Plaintiff to convince her to pay money 

12 to Defendant purportedly to settle the debt owed by both Plaintiff and her daughter, 

13 Defendants used a false representation or deceptive means to collect or attempt to collect 

14 any debt and thus violated the FDCPA. 

15 36. The FDCPA at 15 U.S.C. section 1692f provides, among other things, that "[a] 

16 debt collector may not use unfair or unconscionable means to collect or attempt to collect 

17 any debt." By lying to Plaintiff to convince her to pay money to Defendant purportedly to 

18 settle the debt owed by both Plaintiff and her daughter, Defendants engaged in an unfair 

19 practice to collect or attempt to collect any debt and thus violated the FDCPA. 

20 37. As a result of the foregoing violations of the FDCPA, Defendants are liable to 

21 Plaintiff for a declaratory judgment that the Defendants' conduct violated the FDCPA, and 

22 for actual damages, statutory damages, costs, and aftorney's fees. 

23 SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION 

24 VIOLATION OF THE CALIFORNIA ROSENTHAL FAIR DEBT COLLECTION 

25 PRACTICES ACT, CIVIL CODE § 1788 et seq. 

26 (By Plaintiff as to AII Defendants) 

27 38. Plaintiff incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 30 inclusive, as 

28 though set forth in full herein. 
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1 39. The Rosenthal Act at California Civil Code § 1788 et seq. was enacted in 1976 

2 to protect consumers from the oppressive and overreaching debt collection practices of 

3 creditors and professional debt collectors.. The State Legislature found that unfair or 

4 deceptive debt collection practices undermine the public confidence that is essential to the 

5 continued functioning of the banking and credit system and sound extensions of credit to 

6 consumers. As originally passed, The Rosenthal Act set forth a list of proscribed collection 

7 practices. It was amended with Civil Code § 1788.17, which incorporates many provisions 

A.* I of the FDCPA into the law. 

7' 40. At all times relevant herein, Defendants were "debt collectors" within the 

10 meaning of Civil Code § 1788.2(d), in that they regularly and in the ordinary course of 

11 business, on behalf of themselves or others, engaged in acts and practices in connection 

12 with the collection of consumer debt. Plaintiff is a"debtor" within the meaning of Civil Code 

13 § 1788.2(h) in that she is a natural person from whom Defendants sought to collect a 

14 consumer debt alleged to be due and owing. 

15 41. The purported debt that Defendants attempted to collect from Plaintiff was a 

16 "consumer debt" within the meaning of Civil Code § 1788.2(f). 

17 42. Defendants violated the provisions of Civil Code § 1788.17 by: 

18 a. engaging in conduct the natural consequence of which was to harass, 

19 oppress, or abuse Plaintiff and other parties in connection with collection of a debt, in 

20 violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1692d; 

21 b. using false, deceptive, or misleading misrepresentations or means in 

22 connection with the collection of a debt, in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1692e; and 

23 c. using unfair or unconscionable means to collect or attempt to collect a debt, 

24 ' in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1692f. 

25 43. Defendants violated the provisions of Civil Code § 1788.10 by threatening to 

26 take action in violation of other provisions of the Rosenthal Act. 

27 1 44. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants' violations enumerated above, 

Plaintiff has been damaged in amounts that are subject to proof. 
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1 45. Defendants' violations of the Rosenthal Act were willful and knowing, thereby 

2 entitling Plaintiff to statutory damages pursuant to Civil Code § 1788.30(b). Plaintiff is also 

3 entitled to the remedies set forth at 15 U.S.C. § 1692k., pursuant to Civil Code § 1788.17. 

4I 46. Plaintiff is entitled to recover her reasonable attorney's fees and costs pursuant 

5 to Civil Code §1788.30(c) and 15 U.S.C. § 1692k. 

6 47. Any communications or communicative acts by Defendants herein in 

7 I connection with their attempts to collect on alleged debts were not made to achieve the 

8 objects of, and had no connection or logical relation to, any judicial proceeding or anticipated 

9 judicial proceeding. At the time of making any such communications or performing any such 

10 communicative acts, a lawsuit was not imminent, and Defendants did not seriously 

11 contemplate a lawsuit in good faith as a means of resolving any dispute. 

12 48. At all times herein, Defendants acted with malice, and with a state of mind 

13 I arising from hatred or ill will, evidencing a willingness to vex, annoy and/or injure Plaintiff 

14 and members of the general public. 

15 THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION 

16 Violation of California's Unfair Business Practices Act also known as Business and 

17 Professions Code § 17200 et seq. 

18 (By Plaintiff as to AII Defendants) 

19 49. Plaintiff incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 30 and 39 through 

20 48 inclusive, as though set forth in full herein. 

21 50. Plaintiff brings this action as a private attorney general acting on behalf of the 

22 general public, pursuant to the California Unfair Business Practices Act, Business & 

23 Professions Code § 17200 et seq. (the "UBP Act"). Plaintiff is acting in a representative 

24 capacity to remedy the ongoing unlawful, unfair, and fraudulent business practices aileged 

25 herein, and to seek injunctive relief and restitution on behalf of all those persons who have 

26 been and are being affected thereby. The UBP Act is often referred to as the "Unfair 

27 Competition Law" and it defines unfair competition to include any unlawful, unfair, or 

28 fraudulent business act or practice. The UBP Act provides that a court may order injunctive 
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1 relief and restitution to affected members of the general public as remedies for any violations 

2 of the UBP Act. 

3 51. Beginning on an exact date unknown to Plaintiff, but at all times relevant 

4 herein, Defendant and the DOE defendants have committed acts of unfair competition 

5 proscribed by the UBP Act., including the practices alleged herein. Plaintiff alleges on 

6 information and belief that numerous California consumers are debtors being chased by 

7 Defendant and the DOE defendants who have been subject to these unlawful, unfair, and 

8 fraudulent practices. Defendants committed each of the violations enumerated above 

9 against members of the general public in addition to Plaintiff. 

10 52. Beginning on or about four years prior to the filing of the Complaint in this 

11 action, and continuing thereafter, Defendants have been systematically violating the 

12 provisions of the Rosenthal Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, Civil Code § 1788 et seq. 

13 These violations are and were a matter of corporate policy, and they constitute a consistent 

14 pattern and practice of unlawful corporate behavior. 

15 53. Plaintiff is informed and believes and on that basis alleges that, since four 

16 years prior to the filing of the complaint, Defendants have been and are violating the 

17 Rosenthal Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, and therefore the UBP Act, through the 

18 following unlawful practices: 

19 a. Violating the provisions of Civil Code § 1788.17 by: (i) using false, 

20 deceptive, or misleading misrepresentations or means in connection with the 

21 collection of a debt, in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1692d; and (ii) using unfair or 

22 unconscionable methods in collecting debts, in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1692f. 

23 54. Plaintiff is further informed and believes and on that basis alleges that, since 

24 four years prior to the filing of the Complaint, Defendants have been and are violating the 

25 Consumer Credit Reporting Agencies Act, Civil Code § 1785.1 et seq., and therefore the 

26 UBP Act, through the following unlawful practices: 

27 a. Violating the provisions of Civil Code § 1785.25(a) by furnishing incomplete 

28 and inaccurate information to consumer credit reporting agencies on the specific 
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1 transactions or experiences of consumers' disputed debts, to wit, by failing to note 

2 those debts as "disputed"; 

3 b. Defendants have violated the provisions of Civil Code § 1785.25(c) by 

4 furnishing information to consumer credit reporting agencies about consumer debts 

5 that were subject to a continuing dispute, without also including a notice that the 

6 consumer disputed the information. 

7 55. The business acts and practices of Defendants, as hereinabove alleged, 

8 constitute "unlawfui" business practices under the UBP Act in that, for the reasons set forth 

9 above, said acts and practices violate the provisions of the Rosenthal Fair Debt Collection 

10 Practices Act, Civil Code § 1788 et seq. and the Consumer Credit Reporting Agencies Act, 

11 Civil Code § 1785.1 et seq. 

12 56.. The business acts and practices of Defendants, as hereinabove alleged, 

13 constitute "unfair" business practices under the UBP Act in that said acts and practices 

14 offend public policy and are substantially injurious to consumers. Said acts and practices 

15 have no utility that outweighs their substantial harm to consumers. 

16', 57. The business acts and practices of Defendants, as hereinabove alleged, 

17 constitute "fraudulent" business practices under the UBP Act in that said acts and practices 

18 are likely to deceive -the public and affected consumers as to their legal rights and 

19 obligations, and by use of such deception, may preclude consumers from exercising legal 

20 rights to which they are entitled. 

21 58. The unlawful, unfair, and fraudulent business acts and practices of Defendants 

22 described herein present a continuing threat to members of the general public in that 

23 Defendants are currently engaging in such acts and practices, and will persist and continue 

24 to do so unless and until this Court issues an injunction. 

25 59. Pursuant to Business & Professions Code § 17203, Plaintiff seeks an order 

26 enjoining Defendants from engaging in the acts and practices as hereinabove alleged, and 

27 ordering that Defendants disgorge all ill-gotten gains and provide appropriate restitution to 

28 all affected consumers. 
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60. Plaintiff seeks recovery of attorneys' fees, costs and expenses incurred in the 

filing and prosecution of this action pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure § 1021.5 and any 

other applicable law. 

61. WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for relief as set forth below. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

1. For a declaratory judgment that Defendants' conduct violated the FDCPA, the 

Rosenthal Act, and the UBP Act; 

2. For the maximum amount of statutory damages pursuant to the FDCPA, the 

Rosenthal Act, and the UBP Act; 

3. For actual damages; 

4. For punitive damages; 

5. For injunctive relief, restitution, and disgorgement of ill-gotten gains; . 

6. For prejudgment interest to the extent permitted by law; 

7. For an award of costs, expenses, and reasonable attorney fees incurred in the 

investigation, filing, and prosecution of this lawsuit, pursuant to the FDCPA, the Rosenthal 

Act, and the UBP Act; and 

8. For such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and proper. 

I Dated: May 1, 2023 LAW OFFICES OF JOHN D. GUERRINI 

By: It  
JOHN D. GUERRINI 
ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF 
CARMEN STARKS 
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1 Plaintiff hereby demands a trial by jury. 

2 

3 I Dated: May 9, 2023 LAW OFFICES OF JOHN D. GUERRINI 

4 

5 

6 By: 

JOHN D. GVJERRINI 
7 ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF 

8 
CARMEN STARKS 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18, 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
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I.Q. DATa INTERNATYONAL, INC. 
21222 30TH DRIVE SE #120 BOTHELL., hA 9802~., ~ ....:..., , .. . ~. 

P0. .BCjX 340, BQTHELL, WA 98041 
HOURS: MONDAY-FRIDAY 8A[1 T0 5PM PST : 

TOL.L FREE: 888-24:8-:2:5.09 ' OR (42,5) -609-2..150 FAX .:. (4,25) .60:9--21.04 ~ .. 

f 
~ 

~ 3'AN.UARY 3:1,: 2_023 
J ; ,~. ......:.... .... ._. ... ......... _ . . .. ..~, 

S.OD cc:ount(#.0008:8$087.~ :.  
CARMEN S:TARKS . • _,. • . . .._~.. _ . 

 +: 408.:TAY.LOR ST APT 24 
, .. ~AT{ERSF:I:EI;D C~ 933:09 ;3.05;1 

Gred`itor: ARDELLf1 ON CHAGALL (CA) 

px.;incipal: D:ue c S 61.4 6..9.5 
Tritere;st•  D_ue : $ 91, 95 

To.taa..:Due: 3:$?.9Q 
_:. • _.. . . 

1~tea~ CARMEN STARKS .. 

:4~~ ~~ T~~ Data In_ternational ha~.e reu.iewed your file and agxee  
~accept $3i19 .4S as.;settlement ~n :.full.regarding the .abovemant-ioned.  

'. p„acc.ou*~t.. :Pajiment must be xeeezved: in our o:ff~c.e no~ :lat~r"th~r~ O1/.3,JJ~~.; ~ ...~----. 
; If you ne'ed addxtional time. to respond.to this o_ffer, please conta.ct n~~ 

..• .. - _ ;.agreement de.pends .on funda clearing ypur a:ccount Z::Q Data  
< iurf'he"r agree_s to .request de_letian o:f any h:egat;ive %riformatiori sup:plzed :~~ 6nj?M~ 
i. : , 
" c'r.edit burea~is re~ardirig this accoun~.  We: are not ob.ligated t.q  : _ 

Ze&s~ contact our. af,fice if ou have .an  ~ y :guestlons reg~rdin9 y~ur ti~~, _: -•~,r  . 
~ 

. _ . .. . , . . . ..... _. ..  

~' • .. r ' . 

t ~ •ti.r~'c"~:~:~.:•L~t:,: 
, . 

~ ~.:... ~ .. . •~ 

~ ,. . ~ .... 
~ This cotriitiunication, ;is from a deba coal.ector and: is al) .a:tterript, t:o ,c,ollect a d.ekt; 
' and~ :any infoxmati on obtained wi;ll be u.sed for that purp.ose':. .Your .outs.tanding°;' 

princip"a1 ̀ na,lance wi11 accrue ,in.terest' at a. rate of 0.0.7 ::0:0 pe.r,c entper `anniim`,: 
ris oz the:date of this lett~r, you owe $6238':9.0 Bec.ause of _intere:st, 
late charges and other charges t•hat may vary from day to day, the, amount du.e 
on the day; you pay may be great.e;r:. HencE, if you pay t_he amount sho,an. above_, 
an 'adjustment rriay be necess'ary after we receive your payment, in. whi:ch even.t .•,. .. 
v~e-wi11 infor.m you 'befor.e deposzting th.e p:ayment foY; :'collection.. Eo rt r fuh .. eT ._. 
into,rmat?~'ori,. write the undersigried or call 1.-888=245-2509._ 
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I.Q. DA1A _.NTGRNATIONAL, INC. 
21222. 3.0.TH D;~IVE .S.E ;)120 BOTHELL; "v~A , .. 

P0 BOX; 340, BOTHEIL,. WA .980.41 

_.. . HOURS.: MONDAY-FRIDAY 8AM TO 5.PM P5T 
TOLL FP.EE: 888-248=2509 OR (4`25).-6`09-2750 F.kX: (425')-609-2_.:04: 

JANUr3RY 31, 2023 

RDR: 
CARMEN STARK;S, 
90$ TAYZDR ST PPT'24: 
BAKERSFz:ELD cA 93309-305°i 

Accou,r, t# : 0.0,08°8,8.Q875 
. _ .. 

A-.RDELLA: ON CHAGA'LL ( CA-): 

P,r.in.cipal. :Due 3Q.27:5:0 
I:nterest ~u,e;:: 591,.9:5 

Total :D:ue : ~..3119:: 4,5: 

.,.. ~.. :-: .. 
Me?~ :CP;:RN~~?dt _STAFZKS. 

.:. 

l._ Snc`.: acicrS`"o.~led e: re'ce.i ~ of our ~:a me...i~ ~, C~e~ .. .. . .. 
,:~_ •, ~ ,~ ...., ra _: ' , ; P,' Y k. Y ~.. -~ . . :.. .._. 
amount o~ 19 A:5 on the date of Ol/`31/23. and hereby re=l.ease you, :and: : _.. _ .. 
You alo:ne, f"r:bm ariy further ~ lab:ilzt.y reI°ate.d to the abo.~e mentiori.ed d~k~k~ 

_ _. . . ._. _., 
t1Je Qriginal, .cr.editor an.d. 3..Q.: .Inter:nat.io.nal, -Inc. I Q,_ Data Inter.natio.nalF 

a. .. 
furthex aqrees :to rec~uest. delet~'on o~ ~ny neg.at:ive infQzinat~o;n supp,7 iQd: :~~? 

cre_dit bureau.s r;ga erdig ~t ;nh;e. above on debt ~lease ctact t;fie Zc M 
.V gg tiue: que:st:iori re..garding your f.i1;e, 

S:izie:e,reay~ 

TA8ARE;70.-I'S.H;IKURQ 
Ace:oun~ :Regxesen:ta:tive 
8 25.Q'9: 

; , 
Tnl_s commuxi1ca.tion ls from a. debt: collector. 

Case 1:23-cv-00996-CDB   Document 1   Filed 06/30/23   Page 23 of 29



.: 

.. ~ :...:...... ...... CM-01;0.;;-:r - .... .;:,..i,....u.:... , 

 

.. . . ... .. 
AT70RNEY :OR PARTY,w1THOUT,A7TORNEY.(Naine,;Stale Bar,numb'ei~and addr'essJ: • ~ ~ ~ ' 
JOHN:D:-GUERRINI (66N 1902): ' : 97 

. 

. .... .. ........ .... ...._...__...~._.._..-... .... 
, ~ , : . :e- •• : _ ~:~':~~ •~ ~' -' - ~""': '..: .. _ ,FOR.~UftT USEONLN ,., - ' 

.:. :. . 

Y:~ . ~ ~ ~ 

, ::. 

 

Law Offices.4f John D.:Guerririi, 74 710 Hlghway 111 .St'e;  102; Palm Desert CA 92260;  
.. 

   

ELECTRONICALLY FILED. 

  

~E-MAILADDRESS john@ohnguemni:com' ~~ - ~ ~~- ~ 
5/18./2023 11:59 AM . 

 

ArroRNEY FOR iNamef Plaintlff CARMEN..SPARKS . 
Kern CountySuperior:Court ' 

  

By,Marina_Mercado, Deputy 
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INSTRUCTIONS ON HOW TO COMPLETE THE COVER SHEET CM-010 
To Plaintiffs and Others Filing First Papers:, If you are ffling a first paper (for example, a complaint) in a civil case, you must =_ 
complete and ffle, along with your first paper, te Civil Case Cover Sheet contained on page 1. This information will be used to compile 
statistics about the types and numbers of cases filed. You must complete items 1 through 6 on the sheet. In item 1, you must check 
one box for the case type that best describes the case. If the case fits both a general and a more specific type of case listed in item 1, 
check the more specific one. If the case has multiple causes of action, check the box that best indicates the primary cause of action. 
To assist you in completing the sheet, examples of the cases that belong under each case type in item 1 are provided below. A cover 
sheet must be filed only with your initial paper. Failure to ffle a cover sheet with the first paper filed in a civil case may subject a party, 
its counsel, or both to sanctions under rules 2.30 and 3.220 of the California Rules of Court. 

 

To Parties in Rule 3.740 Collections Cases. A"collections case" under rule 3.740 is defined as an action for recovery of money owed 
in a sum stated to be certain that is not more than $25,000, exclusive of interest and attorney's fees, arising from a transaction in which 
property, services, or money was acquired on credit. A collections case does not include an action seeking the following: (1) tort 
damages, (2) punitive damages, (3) recovery of real property, (4) recovery of personal property, or (5) a prejudgment writ of 
attachment. The identification of a case as a rule 3.740 collections case on this form means that it will be exempt from the general 
time-for-service requirements and case management rules, unless a defendant files a responsive pleading. A rule 3.740 collections 
case will be subject to the requirements for service and obtaining a judgment in rule 3.740. 

 

To Parties in Complex Cases. In complex cases only, parties must also use the Civil Case Cover Sheet to designate whether the 
case is complex. If a plaintiff believes the case is complex under rule 3.400 of the California Rules of Court, this must be indicated by 
completing the appropriate boxes in items 1 and 2. If a plaintiff designates a case as complex, the cover sheet must be served with the 
complaint on all parties to the action. A defendant may file and serve no later ihan the time of its first appearance a joinder in the 
plaintiffs designation, a counter-designation that the case is not complex, or, if the plaintiff has made no designation, a designation that 
the case is complex. CASE TYPES AND EXAMPLES 

 

Auto Tort Contract Provisionally Complex Civil Litigation (Cal. 
Auto (22)-Personal Injury/Property Breach of ContracUlNarranty (06) Rules of Court Rules 3.400-3.403) 

DamageNVrongful Death Breach of Rental/Lease Antitrust/Trade Regulation (03) 
Uninsured Motorist (46) (if the Contracl (not unlawful detainer Construction Defect (10) 
case involves an unlnsured or wrongful evfction) Claims Involving Mass Tort (40) 
motorist claim subject to Contract/Warranty Breach-Seller Securities Li6galion (28) 
arbitration, check this item Plaintiff (not fraud ornegligence) EnvironmentallToxic Tort (30) 
instead ofAuto) Negligent Breach of ContracU Insurance Coverage Claims 

Other PI/PD/WD (Personal lnjury/ Warranty (arising from provisionally complex 
Property Damage/Wrongful Death) Other Breach of ContractlWarranty case type listed above) (41) 
Tort Collections (e.g., money owed, open Enforcement of Judgment 

Asbestos (04) book accounts) (09) Enforcement of Judgment (20) 
Asbestos Property Damage Collection Case-Seller Plaintiff Abstract of Judgment (Out of 
Asbestos Personal Injury/ Other Promissory Note/Collections County) 

Wrongful Death Case Confession of Judgment (non-

 

Product Liability (not asbestos or Insurance Coverage (not provisionally domestic relations) 
toxicdenvironmental) (24) cbmplex) (18) Sister State Judgment 

Medical Malpractice (45) Auto Subrogation Administrative Agency Award 
Medical Malpractice- Other Coverage (not unpaid taxes) 

Physicians & Surgeons Other Contract (37) Petition/Certiffcation of Entry of 
Other Professional Health Care Contractual Fraud Judgment on Unpaid Taxes 

Malpractice Other Contract Dispute Other Enforcement of Judgment 
l Property Other PIIPD/WD (23) Rea
Einent 

Case 
Premises Liability (e.g., slip m Domain/Inverse Miscellaneous Civit Complaint 

Cdtion (14) and fall) onemna RICO (27) 
Intentional Bodily Injury/PD/WD Wrongful Eviction (33) Other Complaint (not specified 

(e.g., assault, vandalism) Other Real Property (e.g., quiet title) (26) above) (42) 
Intentional Infliction of Writ of Possession of Real Property Declaratory Relief Only 

Emotional Distress Mortgage Foreclosure Injunctive Relief Only (non- 
Negligent Infliction of Quiet Title harassment) 

Emotional Distress Other Real Property (not eminent Mechanics Lien 
Other PI/PDNVD domain, landlord/tenant, or Other Commercial Complaint 

Non-PI/PD/WD (Other) Tort foreclosure) Case (non-torbnon-complex) 
Business TorU	 Unlawful Detainer Un(air Business Other Civil Complaint 

Practice (07) Commercial (31) (non-torUnon-complex) 
Civil Rights (e.g., discrimination, Residential (32) Miscellaneous Civil Petition 

false arrest) (not civil Drugs (38) (if the case involves illegal Partnership and Corporate 
harassment) (OS) drugs, check this item; otherwise, Governance (21) 

Defamation (e.g., slander, libel) report as Commercial or Residential) Other Petition (not specified 
(13) Judicial Review above) (43) 

Fraud (16) Asset Forfeiture (O5) Civii Harassment 
Intellectual Property (19) Petition Re: Arbitration Award (11) Workplace Violence 
Professional Negligence (25) Wr 02 d f M it o anate () EtdedDependent Adult 

Legal Malpraclice Writ-Administralive Mandamus Abuse 
Other Professional Malpractice Wril-Ntandamus on Limited Court Election Contest 

(nol medicalorlegat) Case tt Maer Petition for Name Change 
Other Non-PI/PD/WD Tort (35) Writ-Other Limited Court Case Petition for Relief From Late 

Employment Rev iew Claim 
Wrongful Termination (36) Other Judicial Review (39) Other Civil Petition 
Other Employment (15) Review of Health Officer Order 

 

Notice of Appeal__Labor 

 

_ Commissioner Appeals  
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ELECTRONICALLY FILED 

5/18/2023 11:59 AM 

Kern County Superior Court 

By Marina Mercado, Deputy 

SUPERIOR COURT - COUNTY OF KERN 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA BCV=23-101559 

STATEMENT OF CLASSIFICATION AND LOCATION 

CASE NAME: StarkS v. I.Q. Data Irlterllatioflal, et al. 

CLASSIFICATION 0 General Civil 
Q Civil Collections 
Q Unlawful Detainer 

Please check ONE of the following statements to indicate the basis for your filing of the Complaint in this Judicial 
District and fill in the address: 

Q 1. Cause of action arose in this Judicial District. Address of cause of action: 

480 Taylor Street, Apt. 24 Bakersfield 93309-3051. . 
STREET CITY ZIPCODE  

Q 2. Property located in this Judicial District. Address of the property is: 

STREET CITY ZIP CODE .  

Q 3. Tort occurred in this Judicial District. Address of tort is: 

STREEi CITY ZIP CODE 

(or nearest major intersection) 

Q 4. Contract entered into or to be performed in this Judicial District. Address where contract entered 
into or to be performed: 

STREET CITY ZIP CODE 

Q 5. Defendant resides in this Judicial District. Address of defendant is: 

STREET CITY ZIP CODE 

Lj 6. This action falls within the provisions of local case management rule found in the Local Rules of Court. 

• 

DATE May 9, 2023 SIGNATURE OF PARTY OR ATTORNEY 

KERN-0007 (Rev- 11/01/2003) (Op[ional Furm) STATEMENT OF CLASSIFICATION AND LOCATION 
Cff ; Essential 
ceb.com r] FonTS-
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SUPERIOR COURT - COUNTY OF KERN
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

STATEMENT OF CLASSIFICATION AND LOCATION

SASE NAME: Starks v. l.Q. Data International, et al.

cLASSlFlcATloN 17| Generat Civil
l-l Civil Collections
l-l Unlawful Detainer

Please check ONE of the following statements to indicate the basis for your filing of the Complaint in this Judicial
District and fill in the address:

El t. Cause of action arose in this Judicial District. Address of cause of action:

480 Tayfor Street, Apt.24 Bakersfield
clw

93309-3051
ZIP CODE

Ez.

[ ]s .

Property located in this Judicial District. Address of the property is:

STREET

Tort occurred in this Judicial District. Address of tort is:

STBEET CITY ZIP CODE

(or nearest major intersection)

Contract entered into or to be performed in this Judicial District. Address where contract entered
into or to be performed:

STREET

Defendant resides in this Judicial District. Address of defendant is:

STREET CITY ZIP CODE

This action falls within the provisions of local case management rule found in the Local Rules of Court.

DArE May 9,2A23

Eq.

El s.

[f o.

SIGNATURE OF PARTY OR ATTORNEY

KERN-OOO7 (Bev. 11/0'l/2OO3) (Optional Form)

CFll' Essential
.YuF, f"frForms'

STATEMENT OF CLASSIFICATION AND LOCATION

ELECTRONICALLY FILED
5/18/2023 11:59 AM

Kern County Superior Court

By Marina Mercado, Deputy

BCV-23-101559
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SUMMONS
(crTActoN JUDtctAL)

NOTICE TO DEFENDANT: I.Q. DATA INTERNATIONAL, INC., A
(AVISO AL DEMANDADO): WASHINGTON CORPORATION; AND DOES
THROUGH I OO, INCLUSIVE,

YOU ARE BEING SUED BY PLAINTIFF: CARMEN STARKS,
(LO ESTA DEMANDANDO EL DEMANDANTE); INDIVIDUALLY AND ON
BEHALF OF THE GENERAL PUBLIC

suM-100

Deputy
(Adjunto)

name ano a court ts:
(El nombre y direccion de la
SUPERIOR COURT OF

corte es):
CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF KERN

l2l5 Truxtun Avenue
Bakersfi eld, California 9330 1

The name, address, and telephone number of plaintiffs attorney, or plaintiff without an attorney, is:
(El nombre, la direcci6n y el nhmero de tel1fono del abogado del demandante, o del demandante que no tiene abogado, es):
JOHN D. GUERRTNT (SBN 190972) 626-485-866A
LAW OFFICES OF JOHN D. GUERRINI
74-T l0H ighway  l l l  .Su i te  102
Palm Desert. CA 92260
DATE:
(Fecha)

Clerk, by
(Secretario)

FOR COURT USE ONLY
(soLo PARA USO DE LA CORTE)

NOTICEI You have been sued. The court may decide against you without your being heard unless you respond within 30 days. Read the information
below.

You have 30 CALENDAR DAYS afterthig summons and legal papers are served on you to tile a written response at this court and have a copy
served on the plainliff. A letter or phone callwill not protectyou. Your written response must be in proper legalform ifyou wanl the court to hearyour
case. Therc may be a court form that you can use for your response. You can find these court forms and more intormalion at lhe Califomia Courts
Online Seff-Help Center (www.coulinfo.ca.govlsefte/p), your county law library, or the courthouse nearest you. lf you cannol pay the filing fee, ask
the court clerk for a fee waiver form. lf you do not file your response on time, you may lose the case by default, and your wages, money, and property
may be laken vvr'lhout further waming from the courl

There ar€ oth€r lsgal r€quircments. You may want to call an attomEy right away. f you do not kno\r an attomey, l,ou may want to call an atlomey
refeffal servico. lf lrou cannol afford an attomgy, you may b€ eligible for free legal services from a nonprofil legalservices proglam. You can locate
these nonprofit groups at the Califomia Legal Servic€s web sit€ (ryww. lawhelpcalifomia.oryl, lhe Cdifomia Courts Online Self-Help Center
lvrww.cowtinlo.ca.govlsen erp), or by contacling your local couri or county bar association. NOTE: The court has a sl,at tory lien for waiv€d fees and
costs on any sottlement o. albibation alrad of $10,000 or mor6 in a civil case. The court's lien must be paid b€fore the couri will dismiss the case.
iAVrSOt Lo han demandado- Si no rcs@nd€ dentro de 30 dlas, la code puede decidh en su conth sin escuct ar su r€6idr. Lea la infotmacian a
codinuaci6n

Ttene 30 DIAS DE CALENDARIO despu& de qw le entteguen esta citacihn y papsles tegates pa@ prcssrtar ura rgspuesta pot esc/ito en esla
code y hacet que se enhegue una copia al dqtbndanle. Una catta o una anada telef6nica no lo prptegon Su /espuesta por esqito tiene que estar
en formato legal conecto si desoa qre prcc€s€, so caso e4la code. Es posible EE haya un formulaio que usted pueda usar pan su respuesta,
Puede encontar estos tomulaios de la co/fe y m6s irrfdmacian en el Cenbo de Ayuda de las Codes de Cdiro,nia (www.su@rte.ca.gov), er /9
biuioteca de Ws de su coriado o en la co,le que le qtede mes cerca. Si no pued6 pagar la cwta de WsentaciSn, pida d secrctarto de la cofte
qLE le de un fotmulaio de exenci&l de pag,o de carolas. Si ro prcserla &J respuesta a tiempo, puede peder et caso por incumplimiento y la cqle le
podd quihr su s,]oldo, dinerc y bienes sin mds advqteocia.

Hay otros rcE isitos legales. Es reconrendaue que llame a un abgado inmediatanente. Si no conoce a un abogado, pu€de llamr a un seMicio de
ramisi6, a abogados. Si no p.rcde pagar a un abogado, es posible EE cunph con los requisitos pa6 obtener seryicios legales gntuitos de un
prqama de sevicios legales sin fines de ltrc.o. Puede encatar estos grupos sh fnes de luqo en d sitio web de Califdnia Lsgat Seryrbes,
l$/ww.fawhefpcaf ifomia.ory), en el Centrc de Ayuda de las Cottes de Calfomi4 (www.sucorte.ca.gov) o po'],iandose en contacto con ta cotte o el
colegio de abogados locales. AVISO: Por ley, la cofte tiene derccho a rcclam{ las cwtas y los costos exentos por imponer un gavanten sobrc
cualquier recuperaci6n de $10,M 6 Ms de velq recibida mediante un acuerdo o una concesidn de atbitnje ar un caso de derccho civil. Tieno que

elqravamen de la corte antes de que la corte

(For proof of service of this summons, use Proof of Service of Summons (form POS-010).)
(Para prueba de entrega de esfa citation use e/ formulario Proof of Service of Summons, (POS-010)).

ISEAL]

Form Adopted for Mandatory Use
Judicial Council of Califomia
SUi/t-100 [Rev. July 1,2009]

NOTICE TO THE PERSON SERVED: You are served
1. [-_l as an individual defendant.
2.  [ -as the person sued under the f ict i t ious name of (speci fy) :

3. [--l on behalf of (specify):

under: T_l CCP 416.10 (corporation) T_l CCP 416.60 (minor)

l-*l CCP 416.20 (defunct corporation) l--l CCp 416.70 (conservatee)
|--l CCp 416.40 (association or partnership) [-l CCp 416.90 (authorized person)

rsonal delivery on (date, Page 1 of 1

SUMMONS Code of Civil Procedure SS 412.20, 465

ELECTRONICALLY FILED

Kern County Superior Court

By Marina Mercado, Deputy

5/22/2023

BCV-23-101559

5/22/2023 TAMARAH HARBER-PICKENS
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PROOF OF SERVICE 

I am a resident of the State of California, over the age of eighteen years, and not a party 
to the within action.  My business address is: Gordon Rees Scully Mansukhani, LLP, 5 Park 
Plaza, Suite 1100, Irvine, CA 92614.  On June 30, 2023, I served the within document(s) as 
follows:  

DEFENDANT I.Q. DATA INTERNATIONAL, INC.’S NOTICE OF REMOVAL 

BY U.S. MAIL.  By placing the document(s) listed above in a sealed envelope with 
postage thereon fully prepaid, in United States mail in the State of California at Irvine, 
addressed as set forth below.  

BY OVERNIGHT SERVICE.  By placing a true copy thereof enclosed in a sealed 
envelope, at a station designated for collection and processing of envelopes and 
packages for overnight delivery by FedEx as part of the ordinary business practices of 
Gordon & Rees LLP described below, addressed as follows:  

BY ELECTRONIC.  By transmitting via ELECTRONIC MAIL the document(s) listed 
above to the electronic mail (e-mail) addresses as follows: 

 
John D. Guerrini, Esq. 
LAW OFFICES OF JOHN D. GUERRINI 
74-710 Highway 111, Suite 102 
Palm Desert, CA 92260 
Tel.: 626-485-8660 
john@johnguerrini.com  
 

Attorneys for plaintiff 
Carmen Starks 

 
 
 I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above 
is true and correct. 
 

Executed on June 30, 2023 at Chino Hills, California. 

 

 

Evangelina Andrews 
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